Local Government & Services.

In 1841 the population of Woking was 2,482, The railway had come to Woking Common, but little
further development hud taken place. In 1861, a few years after the first land sales by the Necropolis Company.
the population had risen 1o 3,819, By 1881 it had more than doubled 1o 8,544 and by 1891 it was 9.776. By
comparison, the population of Goldswaorth Park in the early 19905 was nearly 12,500!

In the late 18605 Woking was allocated ‘three wheelbarrows, three rakes, four scrmpers and one pump’
to maintain all of the public roads in the arca, The 18705 saw a number of cutbreaks of cholern and typhoid
caused by polluted wells and water supplics, In the 18805 the Railway Company were fined for emptying their
cesspool into the street and by 1891 Woking still had no public gas supply, no street lighting, no sewage
syslem nor many of the other services we would consider essential today!

There had been plans as carly as 1369 for o gas works to serve the town, but they came to nothing and
it was 1881 before another scheme was announced - by the Woking Gas and Water Co, In the end, however,
although they guickly began supplying piped water (in 1883), they never built their gas works (ot Kingfield) and
it was left to another company to build Woking's first public gas works - opening in 1892 a1t Boundary Road.

The various delays meant that Woking was one The Woking Electric Supply Company

of the last towns in the country 1o be supplied with gas,
bt in the meantime it had become one of the first to
have electricity (Godnlming was actually the first).

The Woking Electric Supply Company (Wescn)
was incorporated in 18RS, with a power station builtin
Board School Rowd (henee Wesco Court there), They
originally served only the central part of the town and,
as the electricity was used just for domestic lighting, the
generator operated only during the hours of darkness
By 1895 fewer thun | 80 users had bothered to be
connected.

But ot least Woking now hod access o the
benefits of modemn electricity. gas and fresh piped water,
The state of the roads and the lack of adequate
samitation were not 5o easily solved!

Part of the problem was that there was no "local®
government at that time - at least pot as we know il
Woking was part of the Guildford Rural Highways

(Wesea) work in Norch Road
Aberve = the Weking Gras Waorks taken
Sruam the tap af” Wesco's chimney.

Authority, who were responsible for looking aller the roads (it was they who supplied the wheelbarrows and

other equipment mentioned above). Woking was also inc
were supposed to deal with "sewerage, drainage, lighting,
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luded in the Guildford Rural Sanitary Authority, who
building regulations and public health.!



Both suthoritics were ineffective as for as thee urban areas were concerned. To be fair, the Highways
Authority did recogmise its inelTiciency and in 1873 voted for its own abolition. It was relused. In 1850 the
Sanitiry Authority set up o "Woking Comminee' with delegated powers, but the Local Government Board
overtumed its decision and ordered the Commitice to be dishanded. In 1890 Woking Vestry asked for the area
to be given urban status, but agnin this was refused and it was not until October 1893 that the Woking Urban
Sanitary District (otherwise known as the Woking Local Board) was allowed 1o be formed.

By niw the problems had mounted, the main one being the provision of a sewerage system. In 1890
the CGuildford R,5.A. had proposed using land north of Elmbridge for o works serving the stution area only, In
March 1892 the Local Government Board wined this proposal down. In 1893 the Woking Local Board set up a
competition and although the first prize was given for a scheme at Harelands Farm (on the canal st Goldsworth),
they actually approved the plans for the second placed scheme - at Scotchers Farm in Horsell,

Horsell at that time was still in the Chensey Rural Sanitary Authority’s area, Woking was going 1o get
rid of its sewage by pumping it inte the neighbouring district!

In 1894 Parlisment abolished the old Vestries, Highways Boards and Sanitary Authorities and set up
District Councils - either Rural or Urban, In Woking's case, the Woking Urban District Counil took over from
the Local Board an 15t January, 1895,

The new ULDLC. decided to serap the Seotcher’s Farm scheme and voted instend for o works at Carers
Lane in Old Woking, It was opened in November 18949,

The Council inberited other problems from the Local Board, In November 1893 the Board had sought
tenders for the provision of 100 street lights. In July the following vear they awarded a seven-year contriet fo
the Woking Electric Supply Co.

The cost was £513.155.00d, for installation and £310,165.00d. annually for hghting and repair, The price
seems quite small until you realise that the lights were only on in the winter and even then just from sunset until
midnight. Matters became worse when it was discovered that the service was unreliable as well, When the
lights came on again in October 1895, only 21 of the 111 lamps were alight and in December the entire system
fanled!

In 1898 the Council actually consilered buying the electricity company and in 1900 they decided that,
when the contract came up for renewal, they would go to the gas company instead. S0 in 1902, when almost
every other town in the country was switching from gas to clectric street lighting, Woking tumed from electric
to gas! 1t was not until 1931 tha electric lamps returned to the streets of Woking.

The third major problem for the new Urban District Council was the roads, In the mid-15880s several of
the main streets in the town had been adopted as public highways, but by 1894 only three of these had sctually
been made up. The council soon set about improvements and by 1914 no less than seventy roads had been
adopted and repaired. By then another problem had emerged.

The “Triangle ' at Goldworth befure widening by the Council in the 1920,

it



The origing! Wheastsheal
Bridge bifore rehuilding
Hin 1913-14.

Woking town centre is sandwiched between the canal and the milway. Even today this causes
problems; as Victoria Arch is the only route under the railway in the centre of town. But whereas now the Arch
carries three lanes of traffic, up to 1906 it carried just one, The canal bridges were of a similar widih and with the
canal company in liquidation there was nobody around 10 repair them, let alone widen them, In the autumn of
1906, Chertsey Road Bridge and Arthurs Bridge were in such a bad state that they had to be clesed completely.
The only way from Horsell into town was ever the 15ft-wide Wheatsheaf Bridge.

The story of how the bridges eventually came to be rebuilt 1s long and complex (invalving court cases
ngainst the canal owners and an Act of Parlioment), but gradually the bridges were reconstructed (Wheatsheal
Brdge in 913, Chertsey Road Bridge in 1922 and Monument Bridge completed in 1940),

The ofd brick arch bridge at Chertsey Road was so bad in the early part of the 200k century that in the
aeetemnn o 1906 i had 1o be closed. The Council then replaced it with the “temporary ' wooden bridge
fabove), before fimally replacing it with the curvens bricge in 1922
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The final major problem for the Council in the 1890s should have been the easicst to solve - certainly
much cheaper than the schemes mentioned above - and yet it was this issue that almost literally destroyed the
Council,

There had been attempis in the 18708 (o set up o local Volunteer Fire Brigade, bul without suceess,
and it was not until 1892 that the Woking Torchlight Society sugpested the idea again. The Society was set up
in 1888 to run the annual Sth-of-November carnival and bonfire - famous throughout West Surrey. The Woking
Local Board took up their idea and formed a Fire Brigade Committee, who recommended in May 1894 the
purchase of uniforms and a steam-powered fire engine. Unfortunately the full Board rejected the proposal and
nothing was done until May 1893, when the new Urban District Council voted to buy an engine. In October
they reversed the decision on the engine. and the brigade was set up with just a hand-can, ladders and a length
of leather hose,

During 1897 there were protests, petitions and ol one stage the mass resignation of the brigade: and in
March |893 several of the councillors who were opposed 1o the purchase of the engine were not re-clected in
the local elections. In May the Council voted to buy an engine for £430, but because of an inguiry it was
February 15949 before it could be ordered and August before it amived.

In the meantime, Woking was still without adequate
cover - as the Council found out to their cost that June, when their
offices burned down!

The Council OfTices, which they rented for £100 p.a., were
at that time above Ashby's Bank (later o become Barclays Bank, on
the cormer with the Broadway and Chertsey Road). The Woking
Local Board had met at various places (their first meeting being in
Goldsworth Hall), but in May 1893 the newly formed U.D.C, boughi
some land in Commercial Road for new offices. Plans were drwn up
in January 1897 for new, purpose-built Council Offices costing
£6,000), but although the Council approved the scheme, it was not
approved by the electorate and in January 1398 the Council wisely
reversed their decision. The fire of June 1899 settled the argument
and, after moving to iempomry accommaodation in the Broadway,
the Couneil finally built their new offices in 1905,

In the long run even the rmle-payers gained, as the new
design cost only £4,500, and to make certain that 'lightning' didn’
strike twice, the Council buill a new fire station as well - right in
their own back yard.

The council ofifees were above Thomas
Ashby s Bank flater Bavclay's) on the
corter of Chertsey Road and The
Broadway.

Members of the Woking Five Brigode pavade through the town past Gamemon s store in Commercial Boad.
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Unfortunately there is not
enough space o relate the many
| |amusing stories of the exploits of the
Woking Volunteer Fire Brigade, but
one story that must be told s of the
“Woking Laundry fire’ of April 1904
Apparcntly o spark from the new
steam-powered fire engine set the old
" [handcart alight and in the rush to
save their own property the fire-
4| cngine ran over the hose-pipe.
jcuting ofT the water supply Lo the
fire!

Theee views fram the mid-1 820,
showing members of the Woking Fire
Brigade and their engines

After the First Warld War, Weking
Council :!_1.'!'.:':1." that the old horse-
l:l"lru LUy .‘-rl.'IT"]'FI'Hri'nrl.'l.lf_.rlilrl.' CHERE WS
rend geosendd enongh amid i Seplember
1919 baught a new Dennis Brothers
mrror engtne with relescopic ladder
A .‘l'f'l"'t't'rl'-II ORI WL .l'fﬂ-r("r”-'ﬂ"ﬁl m
1925 and o Renault car, donaied by

one of the Conncillors, was wxed ax a
faaxt marar reidier,

With many of the early problems solved, the Counctl turmed its attention to more pleasant things. In
T900 it wis sugeested that a memorial garden be cremed to commemorate Queen Vietoria; and in 1904 the
"Wictoria Gardens' were laid out ot the junction of the High Street and Commercial Rond. Loter that year the
Council acguired land between Hill View Roud and the Hoe Stream for the "Moumt Hermon Recreation Ground'™;
in July 19405 its layout was approved and work began
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Woking's first swimming pool was built in
the ‘rec.” in 1910, and in 1927 the area was officially
renamed "Woking Park”. By then the original pool had
closed and in 1932 the Duke of Sutherland (a tenant
of Sutton Place) officially opened the new outdoor
pool on the land that had, since 1907, been used as
the town's rubbish tip! A new tip was then created
on eleven and a half acres of lond at Westfield
{besice the Hoe Stream).

Tl b Pai

eliea

SwiriMiN G Pool. Woriso PARK.

The original peol fn the park was just a hole in the ground, lned with planks, and filfed with water pumped
frovm il meachy Hoe Stream, The pool pictured above was buil in ihe early 19305,
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| Members of the
Werking
Swinnting Club,

Culturally speaking, Woking was not so well eatered for by the Council; and although they debated
applying to the Camegie Foundation in 1902 to st up a free library in the tewn, in 1903 the full Couneil rejected
the idea - despite an offer from Camegic of £5,000, 1t was not until 1929 that Woking's first public library
opened!

The ofd Weslevan Chapel
on the corner with Chaprel
Streer became Woking's
first library in 1929, The
semall. original chapel (ol
the back) was the
chiledren s section, whilst
the main part of the
litwrary sccupied the
extension af 1884,
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By then, Woking Urban District included the parish of Horsell (which broke away from Chertsey Rural
District in 1907). Up until then the area under review was mainly covered by the ‘Station and Maybury’ Ward
which, although it included 55% of the population and provided 53% of the rateable value, had only 33% of the
District's Councillors, When Horsell was added, this Ward was sub-divided into four Wards - St Johns:
Goldsworth; Chertsey Road: and Maybury and Mount Hermon.

From 1928 onwards there was further talk of boundary changes and in 1933 Byfleet and Pyrford joined
the Urban District of Woking, Twa years Jater Woking sought borough status, but in 1937 the petition was put
on hold for five years (io allow the arca to develop closer links), and with the coming of the war it was 1974
before Woking Borough was formed.

By the 1930s Woking's
streets were secing i vast increase |
in motorised transport, both public
and private. Several local bus
companies were formed in the
1920, vying for trade - and with
no regulations or timetables, acted
maore like taxis than buses. Woking
Council set wp 2 commitiee -
unigue in this eountry - with
neighbouring Councils to advise
on bus applications to avoid
duplication of service and approve
licences,

Two early motor-uses i Woking. Above: an efehi-
passenger bus of 1904, with below! one of the ‘Woking

The inerease in traffic brought about calls for road ‘improvements', such as the widening of The
Trigngle and Triggs Lane in the carly 19205, 1T the plans of the North West Surrey Regional Planning Scheme of
1928 had been adbered 10, Woking would have had a new "western by-pass’, cutting across the Moum Hermon
area from Turneak (over Twin Bridges) to Arthurs Bridge Road and Horscll. Although this part of the scheme
was not carried out, other parts were, with Westfield Avenoe (built in 1934) being one of the proposed new
roads at that time.

The 1930s also saw the creation of Woking's first onc-way sysiem and the introduction of the town's
first roundabout at Tumoak Comer' in 1934,
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I 1925 the Council debuted butlding a car park in Duke Street (a1 a cost of over £1,000), but the
following March rejected the scheme and it was not until the mid-1930s, after pressure from the local Chamber
of Trade, that the Council eventually provided a car park in Goldsworth Boad. Thes was quite a long way lrom
the main shopping area of Chertsey Road, but in 1937 another car park was provided closer to town, after the
demolition of houses in Commaercial Road (between Church Path and The Awlanta Ballreom).

The Council, of course, was not
the only elected body in the arca, As carly
ns 1874 elections were held for the Woking
School Board. In May that year the Board
bought an scre of land from the Necropolis
Company in what was to be named 'Board
School Road' and the following year the
vown's first school was provided, with room
fior 700 infants and 130 older children.

It appears that the elections for the
School Board were quite eventful, with one
gentleman, Ebeneser Smith, topping the
polls in 1877 with almest o hundred more
voles than his nearest cival, This was
despite reports the previous year that Mr.
Smith attended o meeting of the Board "ina
state of unmistakable intoxication']

The original Board School in Beard Schoel Roead was extended fn 1881 fo caler for an extra 200 pupils.
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In the 18905 one local rate-payer
considered that 'the only use for Board Schools was
to teach children to kick tin cans abow’, but by the
end of the decade the School Board was again hard
al work organising the building of a second school
for the district, at Goldsworth, opened in 1395 at
cost of £6.362, The Monument Hill School was also §
built about this time.

Meanwhile, in the early 15805 (and again in
the early 184905) they had enlarged their origimol
school ot Mavbury and in 1893/4 began evening and jes
technical’ classes on the site. They also urged the
County Council to provide seccondary education in
the district and in 19909 Surrey County Council
bought land to the south of the railway for the Bovs”

The Bovs ' Technical School was bullt fn 1914,

Secondary School and Technical Institute. By
the time it opened in 1914 the Woking School
Board had been abolished and the "Woking

b | Education Committee' formed. It was they who

b were responsible for the estublishment in 1922 of
the County Girls" CGrrammar School in Park Rowd,
The lecal police came under the
junsdiction of the Surrey County Justices who,
in the | X350=, hd formed the Surrey
Constabulary. In 1871 the entire Woking arca
wits served by just three policemen, and it was
not until 1887 that a proper Police Station was
buile for them - on land purchased in 18%6 for
just L300, The building isell cost £2.750 to boild
The origingl Woking Folice Station was opened in [T88T ar Jand had just four cells. The Court-House, in

i cost of £2, 7500 It had room for fust three police officers Heathside Road (behind the onginal Police
and eells for four inmates. Not surpreisingly, it wass tlong  |Station), was built in 1904, with the Woking
hefore it had to be extended! Petty Sessional Division formed two vears later.

Woking's first hospital (n voluntary

cottage hospital) was opened in Bath Road in 1893 with a medical staff of eight, In 1897, 10 commemaorite the
Diamond Jubilee of Queen Victoria, the town decided 1o build a new hospital. In September 1899 4 new thineen-
bed hospital - the Victoria Cottage Hospital - opened on the corner of Boundary Lane and Chobham Road
{actunlly in Horsell), beside Wheatsheaf Bridge.

| The Victoria Hospital, soon after opening. |




The Fictoria Cottage Hospital was
opened in T899 af o coxt of £4.200. 1
wiry extended in 1901-3 and agaln on

several occastons during the inter-war

veary — mofably in T924 as part of

Woking 's War Memortal.

Betweern the wars "Hospital Carnfvals " were
resmfarly held fo raive money for equipment and
aew wards ar the Woking Fietoria Cottage
Huospriter!,
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The Waking Health Sociery's Maternity Hospitad fn Oriental Read

The hospital was extended (with an outpaticnts” department) in 1901-03 a1 a cost of £7,000 as part of
Woking's memorial to the Queen. In 1924 furher alterations were made (a0 2 cost of £20,000) with the excess
money raised for Woking's War Memorial. These additions included four public wards and a new outpatients’
depariment. Four years later a new children's department was added (replicing the temporary "hut' erected in
1919}, together with a casualty e
department below. Between 1936 and
1939 the hospital was further enlarged 1o
include 100 beds, but by then plans had
already been drawn up to build a new
hospital in Kettlewell Hill in Horsell, The
coming of the war, however, imterrupied
thewe plans,

Woking's other hospital ot thot
time was the Maternity Hospital, run by
the Woking Health Society. The original
hospital, in Oriental Road, opened in
1921 with 10 beds. This was enlarged in
1936 to accommuodate 24, but whilst the
Victoria Hospital was planning its move
to Horsell, the Health Society launched
their own scheme for a new Matemity
Unit in Heathside Road. This was buili
early in 1939, with 36 beds, but with the
outhreak of the war it was seon
increased 1o cater for 34!

Purt af the Heathside Rowd Maternity Hospital after it had been
comverted into a geriairic hospital and shorily before it was
demaolished.
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Woking at War.

In early Seprember 1939 the first wave of evacuees arrived, but apparently not enough places could be
found in local homes and in January 1940 the Council agreed to provide two hostels (one for boys, one for
girls). They also considered bringing in compulsory hilleting powers if enough voluntary billets could not be
found, whilst at the same time trying to reassure people that the area was relatively safe and that "there was no
Justification for the rumour that the area would not remain a reception arca for evacuees”.

Whilst the evacuces were moving in, others were moving out. The Ministry of Health took over the
Orphanege in Oriental Road for 8 War Hospital and the orphans moved to places such as Guildford and
Basingstoke. Other local propertics were al=o taken over for the war efTort. The NAAFT wok over Mayvhurst at
Maybury Hill, whilst Surrey County Council converted Lismore in Heathside Road into a hostel in 1941, and in
1944 St. Fillian's { Maybury Hill) and Penlea (Clarement Avenue) became "Day Nurserics',

Lecal children and those evacuated to the arca were immunised agmnst typhoid in late 1940 and
diphthena the following summer, but still outbreaks of these and other infectious diseases occurred,

The Medical Officer also hod to worry about gas attacks, Evervone had gas masks, and
‘decontamination posts’ were built at various places in the distriet, but fortunately the predicied gas attacks
never materialised. Cecasionally bombs did come. By October 1940 it was rumoured that Woking was the most
hombed rural district in the country. Whether that was actually true or not 1s doubtfil, but it certainly gained
enough credence locally for Mrs. Maude Ceely to record the 'Tact’ in her diary (published in 1993 as *Woking -
A Wartime Diary*),

In June, Woking Council had approved the construction of o 100-person air-raid shelter in Commercial
Road, and in October another was provided on the nearby Wheatsheal Recreation Ground. It is. however,
uncertain how cost-effective these measunes were, as in November 1940 a survey in London showed that only
40% of people used the shelters provided and at night only 9% entered the public shelters, We do not know
what praportion of Woking people used the local shelters.

The blackout brought its own problems. It lasted from st September, 1939, until 1 7th September, 1944,
during which time many aceidents occurred, with drivers unable to find their way in the dark. In January 1940,
the local Chamber of Trade suggested whitening the kerbs, but the council rejected this idea and instead asked
the Wokmng Electric Supply Company to mstall six special lamps as an experiment. The experiment was
obviously o success, as eventually a hundred lamps were converted by the company, cutting down glare, but
still allowing sufficient light for the motorists o see,

The larze family home of Lismore was taken over by Swrrey County Council during the war for a hostel, After
the war it was wsed as offices for the Education Committee before being sold by the eouneil for divelopment.
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Members of Woking s Home Guard outside the Bovs ' Technical School (fater the Grammar School) in Station
Approgch, Anthony Eden, Seeretary of State for War, announced the formation of Local Volunteer Defence
Squacls on [4th May, 1940, aind before the day wes ot 70 men had signed up in Woking,

Others succumbed 1o the eagle eye of the Warden. In the Council Minutes of October 1940 we find
thut a stretcher party had been fined £2 for a black-out offence, The Council vated to pay the fine fin view of the
special circumsiances’ (whatever they were), but they were obviously more special than the Assistunt
Librarian's offence the following year, as on that oceasion the Council only paid a little over half of the £5 fine!

Bombs continued to fall every month until eardy 1941 and, according to one source, seven people were
killed 1t an air rid on the town m January 1941

More shelters had 1o be provided and in January 1941 the Council agreed to provide a public shelter in
Victoria Gardens - designed so that it could be converted into an open-fronted shelter after the war.

The Council were not the only ones looking ahead and in May that year Mr. Broderick of 41, Mount
Hermon Road, asked for permission to erect his own shelter, 1o be converted into o garage in peace time.
Shortly after, however, there was a full in attacks - until the spring of 1942 - followed by sporadic raids for the
next twelve months.

Meanwhile the locals, evacuees and the troops stationed at nearby Inkerman Barmcks could look
forward o new "Sunday entertainment’, with local cinemas showing films and a fun fair being set up in Duke
Streef.

In the summer of 1940 it was reported that troops billeted in the area could use the pool for just 14,
each, but for those secking a good book o read it was slightly more complicated. The Library Committee
decided that members of H.M. Forces should pay a deposit of 25x belore they could borrow any books and o
further deposit equal 1o half the value of any non-fiction books costing over 10,

Whether uny troops bothered to take up the latter offer is nod recorded, but men stationed al Inkerman
certainly crowded into town and in July 1941 the Council decided 1o remove the trees lining The Broadway to
allow extra room for those queuing for the St Johns and Knaphill buses,

Firms such as Vickers Armstrong and G.0). Parachutes were busy expanding their operations - G.()'s
Portugal Road premises being erected in early 1940, Vickers hud workshops all over the district and hardly o
month went by without permission being given for new stores. [n the diary of Mrs. Ceeley, however, we
discover just what conditions were like, when in June 1941 she left Vickers to stan work Tor the Generl Aircraft
Company in Goldsworth Road,
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"] have at lnst got o war job, rivet making. starting at nine and three-farthings per hour, 47 hours a
wieek. Previous to this | worked as cook in a canteen at one of Vickers" works, but | was so disgusted at the
methods used that 1 gave it up. Half milk, half water for puddings. Grovy made only with greens and potato
water, Greens and potatocs left over from the day belore served up, A disgusting way to feed men and women

doing lard work.”

Adfter working st General Adreralt (uniil September [942), she moved to GO, Parachutes and then back
to making rivets ol Goldsworth before going on to James Walker's in August 1943 "1 started this diary with the
object of showing how this war affecis me. [t has certainly improved my education as | have learmt metal work,

electric sewing muchine and am now leaming quite a bit about making rubber

Wed "

articles - and | shall be 50 next

To help war workers, the Chamber of Trade asked local shops to stay open late on Friday evenings,
but in March 1942 they noted that it was not taken advantage of' and so they left it 1o individual traders®

discretion.

The return of raids lae in 1943 highlighted the inndegquacy of some basement shelters and in December
the Council called for shelters at the Rendezvous Restaurant in Commergial Road, and st Mr. Lutley's shop in
Chertsey Road, to be closed. The following February they asked for more "Morrison sheliers” 1o be provided for

the town,

Further problems were apparently caused by dogs, with the Council tking steps in July 1944 to ban
them from all public shelters. At the same time they decided that, as the public shelters in town were seldom
wsed at night, they would remove the bunks to give more room. They muy also have had to strengthen the older
shelters, as it was found that the specification for the mortar used in 1939-40 was fauly and the roofi were
finble to collapse if hit. Curtain walls were to be added.

To help the war effort, provisions were

made for the salvage of bones, tins, bottles and |

metal, Railings were to be removed from the
gardens of council houses in Walton Road,
from the War Memaorial Garden and from the
islamad aut the top of Hill View Road. The milings
outside the new Council Offices i Guildfiard
Road were also removed, as was the
‘superstructure on the roof of the pool cafe and
the pumping house’ in Woking Park, but the
railings around CGoldsworth School were o
remain. Keeping the children of Goldsworth
School in was evidently more important than
keeping the enemy out!

In July 1940 the idea of starting a
‘Spitfire Fund® was announced. Other funds
followed. In March 1941 the Weyside Singers
performed a concert al The Amlanta in aid of
the Paligh Relief Fund; and in May 1942 the
‘Anglo-Russian Friendship Week” was held -
rising £1,500 for a mobile x-ray unit. The
following yeudr the same smount was raised for
o new ward at Stalingrad Hospital.

Warship Week was held in February
1942, and in the spring of 1943 4 wrget of
£600,000 was sct (and more than reached) for
the "Wings for Victory Week'. Events included
an open air dance at Horsell Sports Groumd, a
‘Baby Show” ot Wheatsheal Bec, and o Boxing
Tournament ot the Grand Theatre. 1944 saw the
"Salute the Soldier Week', st up by the Woking
Wational Savings Committee, which mised
£640,000 with cvents ranging lrom the sedate
"Window Spotting Display” to a more energetic
display of army equipment.
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The programme for the *Weoking Wings for Victory Week”
froxing Tournament held ar the Grand Thearre in
Contmrercial Road on the 19k Mateh, 1943,
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Cn the home front, rationing meant that there was less food available, but in February 1940 the Council
agreed 1o turn the former tip a1 Elmbridge into allotments, opening a new refuse tip near Durnford Bridge in
Horsell at the same time. Temporary allotments were also provided at Boundary Road and all council
householders were asked 1o cultivate their gardens. The Southern Railway provided land at Tin Bridges for
allotments as well In June 1941 it was reported that in Woking Park the Council were growing vegetables, some
of which went to local hostels and the newly sct up ‘British Restaurant’ in Commercial Road.

The Council wene also proposing to set up a market in April 1944 selling *fruit and vigelables and
honicultural produce, as well as pouliry, game and fish and various un-rationcd foods together with approved
peddlers’ wares'. The Ministry of Health, however, only gave permission for a vegetable market (to be held on a
Thursday only), and in September 1944 the car park in Goldsworth Road was converted {at a cost of about
E100) 1o sccommuodate the market. Residents were to be charged 42, a week, with non-resident stall-holders
charged double that, The number of takers must have been small, as in January 1945 the Council decided to
close the market until the end of March "in view of the low lettings',

In thie weeks (even months) building up o D-Day on 6th June, the milway through Woking was busy
carrying materials. The local roads were also busy with lorries bringing goods 1o the station, as Mrs. Cecley
notes on the day after D-Day - "The strects here seem absolutely deseried after weeks of convoys continually
passing through®. The work at the station was not finished, however, as some of the wounded were brought by
traain 1o Woking to be transferred to the milisary hospital in Oriental Road (or to nearby Pyrford or Chertsey)

1944 saw mnssive aitacks on London, with the first "flying bomb' landing on 12th June. Seven days
later Maude Ceeley records: "The Germans have a new secret weapon - We have had continuous raids for 3
days and nights now and have been very scared. One came over last might af terrific speed very low, and |
thought it was going to hit us. | have never been so frightened before.”

In October 1944 the Clerk of the Council reported.,

“Up to the end of September there had been 1555 alerts in the district and as a result of $% air raids 2
residents had been killed and 52 injured. A raid close o the boundary of the district had resulted in 13 residents
losing their lives and in a large number being injured. 434 bombs had fallen in the district resulting in 2844
propertics being damaged and 26 destroyed. 12 large clusters of incendiary bombs had also fallen in the
destrici™. The raid ‘close to the boundary’ was ;1 Brooklands, Byfleet

Further attacks were recorded in September and October 1944, and again on 5th March, 1945, The last
bomb of the war fell in Hert fordshire just over three weeks later!

W P 4 28I ”

Vo Day celebrations in Cherry Steder, Goldsworih,

In April the Woking Council of Churches proposed that a special service should be held on
Wheatsheaf Recreation Ground on the day after the cessation of hostilities, but it was generally thought that
everyone would 'do their own thing', so the idea was dropped. The war came to an end on Tth May, 1945 and in
July the Council set up a "Victory Day' Sub-Committee, whilst communities all over the arca drew up plans for
their own V.E.Day celebrations. V.1, Day followed in August - the Second World War was over and in
September o meeting was called 1o discuss the provision of a War Memorial.

52



Early Post-War Woking.

With little bomb damage (compared to other areas), Woking didn’t need much rebuilding, but it soon
became clear that the sleepy little commuter town of the inter-war yvears would have to change. There was
pressure for new howsing 1o be built and with it came the demand for more shops, mone schools, more leisure
facilitics and more industry.

Most of the early post-war development was small in scale = in=fill in the older urban areis - but by the
k= 1 950k "green-ficld” sites were being sought,

The West Byileel emd of
Altwerr Drive, Sheerwater,
senern aifler consiriciion.

Cine of the first was the Sheerwater Estate to the east of the town. It was begun in 1948 by the London
County Council as an "out-of<county’ overspill area. The fact that it was built upon the bed of an old lnke
caused many problems and it was not until September 1951 that the first houses could be accupicd. Originally
there were 1,279 homes 45 well as shops, churehes, o public house, sports and social facilities and three
schools. The estate was almost self-suificient. with o 30-icre industrial estate providing work for many of the
new inhabitams.

Other industrial catates were also provided at this time, mainly to take industries away from the central
area, In the late 19505 firms such a5 S. Murray {producers of test tubes) and Teleree (carly pioncers ol the use
of Perspex) = bath from Board School Road - moved e Old Woking, whilst other firms moved 1o sites at 5t
Johns, Knaphill or Byfleet,

Monument Way (East and West) and
the Goldsworth Road area became the main
industrial arcas in the cenral part of Woking, |
with James Walker's "Lion Works' being the main |5
industrial complex to the south of the ratlway

London County Council was not the
only Council to build houses in the 19505, After 7 i -
a long break, Woking LLD.C, also developed 3 mm ..

"preen-ficld” estates. Maybury and Elmbridge LB S g 1 Xy
were both built in two phases, with thear first | . !
phiases due Tor completion in 1952 - henee the = | e

northern section of the Elmbridge development |
being christened 'Gueen Elizabeth Way', and the [ n ’
‘royal’ names of the Maybury Estute! The The flats of the Barnshury Extate,
Barnsbury Estate followed in 1955, sevom after completion in the mid-1 95,
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In 1931 the populanon of Woking had been 29,950, living in 6,833 homes, By 1951 the population had
risen W 49,310 and by 1961 it was 67,485, Woking was growing fust.

Cavendizsh Read, off Triggs Lane, appears to have been one of the earlicst post-war private cstates
(begun in the late 1940s). 1t was joined in the mid-1950s by other small developments such as Birch Close (ofT
The Trinngle), and Hillside and Old Hill, both off Egley Road. By the late 19505, however, pressure was
increasing for the redevelopment of large arcas of urban Woking - especially in the vicinity of Mount Hermon
ond Heathside.

In 1938 the first magor plun for high-density’ properties was proposed, with permission being given in
1959 for 92 Mars, maisonettes and town houses toreplace five large houses north of Hill View Road. The award -
winning scheme, named 'Hillview Court’, ingluded what was then described as an “ultra-modern docior’s
surgery’!

This scheme (as well s several others at that time) was actually conteary to the 1953 County
Development Plan and it was not until 1962 that the initial 70 acres of the "Mount Hermon High Density Area®
were officially approved. This included the area between White Rose Lane, Woking Park, Brooklyn Road and
Heathside Road.

In the meantime, several plans were put forward for high-density schemes. As an example, in just one
month (May 1960) Woking Council had applications for a ten-storey block of fats at Thorsden, Guildford Road;
another ten-storey block at St Austin’s, Mount Hermon Road; and a group of seventy fats in blocks of two,
three and eleven storeys at Heathfield, Heathside Road. To the Council's credit at that time, all were refused.

By the end of July 1960, 37 applications for high-density plans had been received, only four of which
hiad been approved. Radstone Court and Southview Court in Hill View Road were two of those which received
approval,

Some sites were approved only after appeal to the Minister of Housing & Local Government. Park
Court. off Poplar Grove. was one such site and "Sandilands’ in Brooklyn Road was considered by the Minister to
be ‘'medium density’, not "high density’, and so allowable,

" w 4

Park Court, off Popular Grove, was not considered fo be "high denxity ' howsing and so was affowed

Even so, not all approved applications were finally built. In April 1962 Woking Council approved a
scheme for a mine-storey block of 64 Nats (and a restaurant) at Woodiands, Constitution Hill, Fortunately a lmer
application sought only the houses that are there now!

Mew estates on the site of old houses came thick and fast from then onwards, It would be impossible
in & book such as thiz to list every major development of the period but as an example, the Park Place Estate off
Hill View Foad was given permission in Muy 1963; and Moorholme (ofT Guildford Foad) was proposed in
August the same year, and even away from the designated "high-density’ area. old properties were being
replaced, such as Barrens and Lingficld in White Rose Lane.

In 1966 the Mount Hermon High Density Area was extended to include all the land up to Wyeh Hill
Lane - an area of 125 acres south ofthe railway. The maximum height was to be ten storevs, but in practice only
one such building was originally constructed - Craigmaore Tower, approved in 1963 and completed two years
Later.

All the above were private developments, but Woking Council, having constricted their "farm' estates
in the 19505, moved on to build maisonettes and flats in the kute "60s and early "70s, One such development
was Walton Court (approved in early 1966) and described in an April 1966 edition of the Woking Mews and
Muil as a "paradise for children, with spacious lawns and play areas™ 1t was completed in 1971, by which time
the population of the borough had reached 76,842,



The Ockemden Venture hod
FUTTE IS Hrlﬂll'.ll.l.l'l'l'i'.l i e
terwen, ineluding Jodn amd
Celadys Garforth, who
started the Ockenden
Venture s charitv shop at
New, 19 and 20, Guildford
Roeed {erhove)

A sereet parety in Conrtenay
Road, Weking — one of the
many streets in the fown
that cefebrated the
coronalion of (heen
Elfzabeth If in June 1953,

In 1931, with people celebrating the *Festival of
Britain ', Jovee Pearce and her friends invited 17
‘displaced” teenagers from Eastern Evrope fo
spend a heliday at er bome, Ockenden, fn Whire
Fose Lane (left), Woking Conncil and the local
Retary Club supported hee fdea, which
everntuafly lead to the formation of the charity
‘Chckenden Ventwre . Over the years the
prganivation has helped countless refugees from
all over the warld, norably from Asia, Africa and
the Middle East.




The young might
hawve been catered for in
Walton Court, but the old
were not forgotten, The
Southemn Railwaymen's Home
(attached to the Orphanage in
Oriental Road) began catering
for retired railway employees
soon ifler the war, whilst
other homes were provided
o | by organisations such as the
Red Cross (Limerick House,
JHeathside Park Road); the

& | Church Army (Kingsbury,
- Coley Avenue); and Surrey
The Kingxbury flome in Coley Avenie County Council, whose
"Heathside' (also in Coley
Avenue) replaced o former
Y private hotel of the same
W namie.

Surrey County
Council were also building
new schools for the ever-
incrensing population.
Bamsbury School was built in
1957, with Highlands
L ] Sccondary Schoal being buil
f B B '._, * i ;n the o1 h{.:;ﬂrlldf -::';Jm Hoe
L ol | tresum i 195560, Chther
i"_'?h-i"l b _‘:‘* H_ g ?'"_' =< 8 schools built ar this time
- . - included the new Girls®
= S Cirammar School on the Old
] Waoking Roud, whilst jusi
around the comer from their
old "huts” in Park Road, the
Roinan Catholic St Dunstan's
Primary snd Infant School
opened i Onslow Crescent in
B 1957,

WL AL N AR ATIMNG S

St Columbas House, apened and dedicated in Ogtober 1968 ax o retreat
honse in the grownds af the 1. Peter s Convent, Mavbury.,

A prowing
papulation demanded a
growing shopping centre,
Woking in the 19505 still had
mainky pre-war shops. The
‘Liverpool Victora' building
on the comer of Goldsworth
Road was one of the few

H propertics to be built in the
19505, Others included the
former Employment Exchange

- in Guildford Road - the name
. _M - '‘Coronation House' giving
The Girls " Grammiar Sclool in Ofd Woking Rood repluced the s in Park  |nway its age - and in 1959, the
Road where the *Park School ' is today, The school, ahove, later became the  [new Woalworth's in Chertsey
GEN Sehool before being demolished (n the early 1990y and replaced by the  |Road (converfed in the 1990

fheniwes of Martingvde foff East Sill} and the *Prins Withem Alexander” Duteh [imo Weatherspoon's public
School. hause ).
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Above — The
Liverpool Vietoria
Building on the
CRrner r_ij'
Goddswarth Rogad
ared welat ix now
Fietoria Way fthen
Percy Strevt) was
ape of the first set of
new shops fo b
Hruilt in the town
after the Secomd
Warld War.

T bilding of the wew
Weralworth 's store (now part
of Weatherspoon ‘s) in [958,

Above — looking toweards
ke Streer, with Edward
Mifler's sl o the corner
with Chertsey Rowod.

Lt — the shops of
Cammercial Road in the
Packgromd,

i
1
i

—

Chertsey Road showing the xite vacated
by the Gawmant Cinema, with the

Lawndreite next o Tesco's (now the site
af the Rar & Parrot public houze) on the 55

left,
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Aw artist's " impression of the new Robinvon s store in Chertsey Road,

In the carly 19645, the old Ganmont Cinerma in Chertsey Rond was demolished and redeveloped with
five shops, whilst just up the rond Teseo's built their new “seli-service' supermarket. later converted into 4
furniture store and later still a public house.

Cluser o the station, Robinson's had drawn up plans in 1962 for a new department stone at Nos. 9-17,
Chertsey Road (the ground and basement of which was later to become MceDonald's).

Woking at that time had theee ‘department stores', with Gammon™s on the comer of Chobham Road and
Commercinl Road, and the Co-op on the comer of Percy Street and Church Street, challenging Robinson's
‘mdern” store,

The Co-op site had
long been thought of as
‘out-o f-town’, but in April
19640 the new General Post
Office opened in nearby
Commercial Road (on the
site of the old Council
Offices - vacated in January
1940) and a few years later
Premacr House (on the site
of the Grand Theatre and
Water Co. offices) seemed
o confirm the west end of
town's revival,

Premier House
(later refurbished and re-
named) was designed by a
local firm of architects -
The Pasr Cffice, opened in Commercial Road in 1960, Osbom & Hollis- and was

58



one of the first buildings in the wown to be
developed for the Morwich Union Life Insurance
Society,

Morwich Linion were also responsible
for Ryde House in Choblizm Road (built in 1962
and demolished less than thirty years Inter); and
in 1965 work began on their third scheme, the
L500,000 AThion House {also recently re-
furbizhesd).

Office development was at that time
restricted 1o local’ use only. 1t was not until 1969
that the Government gave a permit for genernl
office development.

Other 1960s offices included Nos, 15-20,
Gioldsworth Road (built in the mid-1560s and
remodelled in the carly 1990s when it became the
new “Job Centre ") and Lynton House in Station
Approach, built in 1969 by, and for, a local firm of
butlders - W, Deakin & Co.

I8y the early 19608 Commercial Road
wats al last becoming mone commercial, In | 960
outling plans were approved for the
redevelopment of the northern part of the strect.
More detailed plans emerged in 1963 and these
were further modified in 1965, but it was not until the end of the decade that work really begun on construction.

In the meantime, five shops were buill in 1964 between Church Path and Chobham Road. Two of these
were occupicd by the District Bank (later taken over by the National Westminster Bank — and loter still by the
Cheltenham & Gloucester Building Society] and in the same vear Lloyds opened their new branch in the roud.
Next door to Llovds Bank were the Lambeth Building Society and Moldram & Wilson, Estate Agents. Banks,
building socictics and estate agenis - the trend was being set, further confirmed in Degcember 1968 by the
opening of the new Midland Bank (later the HSBC),

By the end of the decade, however, some improvement in the shopping prospects of the street had
been made, with Kibby's Supermarket (part of the Unigate Group) announcing their move to Momis House
{nomed after the cars formerly sold on the site by Haslemere Motor Company ). Kibby's later beeame the
‘International® and the site is now occupied by Argos,

Rvile Hovse in Chobham Road, built in the early [960s,
on the sife mow occipied by Fictorio Gate.




